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Notes 

1. There being no special Business, the statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not mandated. Additional information, pursuant to Regulations 
26 (4) and 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings in respect of Director 
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting is furnished as 
annexure to the Notice 

 
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled 

to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in the Meeting instead of himself and the 
proxy need not be a Member of the Company.  

 
3. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective must be signed and 

scanned in pdf format and deposited by the email to the Registrar and transfer agent viz. 
info@unisec.in and marking a copy to the Company on 
companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting viz. up to 09:00 a.m. on July 11, 2022. Members/ proxies 
should bring their duly filled attendance slip attached herewith to attend the meeting. 

 
4. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in 

aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. A proxy form is 
annexed to this Report. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies, etc., 
must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable. 

 
5. Institutional shareholders/corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF’s, 

NRI’s, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of their respective 
Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing their representative 
to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall 
be sent on companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com. 

 
6. In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Yogita Agrawal, Director, retires 

by rotation at the Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and the Board of 
Directors of the Company commends her re-appointment.   

 
7. Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 permits service of documents on Members by a 

Company through electronic mode. So in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Rules framed thereunder, the Annual Report for the year 2021-22 is being sent 
through electronic mode to those members whose email addresses are registered with 
the Company/Depository Participant. 
Please note that vide SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 
13, 2022, read with MCA General 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, compliance norms 
pertaining to requirement of sending physical copies of annual reports to shareholders for 
general meeting to be held up-to December 31, 2022 has been dispensed off. In view of 
the above the Company will not be printing physical copies of the Annual Report. 
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Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents, Universal Capital Securities Private Limited 
(“Company’s RTA”) at https://www.unisec.in/kyc-download.html . It may be noted that 
any service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.   
 

13. SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has mandated that all requests for 
transfer of securities including transmission and transposition requests shall be processed 
only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated with 
physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization. Members are advised to 
dematerialise the shares held by them in physical form. Members can contact the 
Company or Company’s RTA, for assistance in this regard. 
 

14. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one 
folio are requested to send to the Company or Company’s RTA, the details of such folios 
together with the Share Certificates along with the requisite KYC Documents for 
consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of Share Certificates 
shall be processed in dematerialized form.  

 
15. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Circular, the 

facility for making nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held 
by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to 
register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to opt out or 
cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/ she may submit the 
same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded 
from the Company’s website https://elegantmarbles.com/pages/investor-relations. 
Members are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held 
by them in dematerialized form and to Company’s RTA in case the shares are held in 
physical form.   
 

16. In terms of the Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated 21st March, 2013 issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, listed companies are required to use the Reserve 
Bank of India approved electronic mode of payment such as Electronic Clearance Service 
(ECS), LECS (Local ECS)/RECS (Regional ECS)/NECS (National ECS), NEFT, etc. for 
making cash payments like dividend, etc. to the Members. Accordingly, Members holding 
securities in demat mode are requested to update their Bank details with their Depository 
Participants. Those holding securities in physical form are requested to update said 
details with the Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Universal Capital Securities Pvt 
Ltd.(100% subsidiary of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd) C-101, 247 Park, 1st Floor, LBS Road, 
Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli (West),  Mumbai – 400 083 or the Company Secretary of the 
Company. 

 
17. The Company has fixed Wednesday, July 06, 2022 as the “Record Date” for determining 

entitlement of Members to final dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, if 
approved at the AGM. 
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provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act which require a company to transfer in the name 
of IEPF Authority all shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 
7 (seven) consecutive years or more. In accordance with the aforesaid provision of the 
Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has transferred all Shares in respect of 
which Dividend declared for the Financial Year 2013-14 has not been paid or claimed by 
the members for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more. Members are advised to 
periodically visit the web-link: https://www.elegantmarbles.com/transfer-of-shares-to-
iepf/ to ascertain details of shares liable for transfer in the name of IEPF Authority.   
 

21. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 
order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting. 
 

22. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Statement are open 
for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business 
hours on all working days, up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

 
23. Members desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the 

Company at least 10 days before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep 
the information available at the meeting. 
 

24. A route map giving directions to reach the venue of the 37th Annual General Meeting is 
given at the end of the Notice.  

 
25. The voting rights of the shareholders for voting through remote e-voting or by Poll paper 

at the AGM shall be in proportion to their share of the paid- up equity share capital of the 
Company as on July 06, 2022 (‘Cut-Off Date’). A person whose name is recorded in the 
Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-
voting or of voting at the AGM and who is not a Member as on the cut-off date shall treat 
this Notice for information purposes only. Person acquiring shares after dispatch of this 
notice but holds shares as on cut-off date can generate the password as per instructions 
stated in notice or seek assistance from CDSL via writing e-mail on 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.  
 

26. Shri. Virendra G. Bhatt, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. ACS 1157) has 
been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. The Chairman shall forthwith on receipt of the Scrutinizer’s Report, 
declare the result of the voting. The Results declared, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, 
shall be placed on the Company’s website www.elegantmarbles.com and on the website 
of CDSL immediately after their declaration, and communicated to the Stock Exchanges 
where the shares of the Company are listed, viz. BSE Ltd. 
 

27. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the 
AGM Notice shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, i.e. July 13, 2022. 

 



14 

28. Votin
Pursu
Comp
enact
Disclo
facility
electr
by Ce

 
The fa
venue
have 
voting
remot
at the
 
The i

 
Step

 
Step

 
(i) T

a
in
m
v

 
(ii) S

to
 

(iii) P
0
O
re
sh
th

 
C
fa
m

 
In
co

ng through 
ant to Sec

panies (Man
ments mad

osure Requi
y to exercis
onic means 

entral Depos

acility for v
e of the 37
not already

g rights at 
te e-voting 
e AGM.  

nstruction

p 1: Acces
share

p 2: Acces
in phy

he voting p
t 05.00p.m
n physical fo
may cast the
oting therea

hareholders
o vote at the

ursuant to 
09.12.2020
Obligations 
equired to 
hareholders
he public no

Currently, th
acility to list

maintenance

n order to 
onsultation,

electronic
ction 108 o
agement an

de thereund
irements) R
se members

and the bu
sitory Servic

voting throu
7th Annual G
y cast their 
the meetin
may attend

s of Shareh

ss through D
holders hold

ss through C
ysical mode 

period begin
. During thi
orm or in d
eir vote elec
after. 

s who have 
e meeting v

SEBI Circ
, under Reg
and Disclos
provide rem

s’ resolution
on-institutio

here are m
ted entities 

e of multiple

increase t
, it has bee

c means:-
of the Com
nd Administ
der and Reg
Regulations,
s’ right to v
siness may 

ces (India) L

ugh ballot/p
General Mee
vote throug
g. The mem
 the meetin

holders for

Depositories
ding shares 

CDSL e-Voti
and non-in

s on July 10
s period sha

dematerializ
ctronically. T

already vot
venue. 

cular No. S
gulation 44 
sure Requir
mote e-voti
ns. However
nal shareho

ultiple e-vo
in India. T

e user IDs an

he efficienc
en decided 

 

 

mpanies Act
ration) Rule
gulation 44 
, 2015 the 
ote at the 3
be transact

Limited (CDS

polling pape
eting. The 
gh remote e
mbers who 
ng but shall 

r remote e-

s CDSL/NSD
in demat m

ng system 
dividual sha

0, 2022 at 
areholders’ 
ed form, as
The e-voting

ted prior to 

SEBI/HO/C
of Securitie
rements) R
ing facility 
r, it has be
olders/retail 

oting service
This necessit
nd password

cy of the v
to enable 

t, 2013 an
es, 2014 rea

of the SE
Company 

37th Annual 
ted through
SL):  

er shall also
Members a
e-voting sha
have alrea
not be entit

-Voting: 

DL e-Voting 
mode.  

in case of s
areholders i

09.00 a.m. 
of the Com
s on the cu
g module sh

the meeting

CFD/CMD/
s and Excha

Regulations,
to its shar

een observe
shareholde

e providers
tates regist
ds by the sh

voting proc
e-voting to

nd Rule 20
ad with am
BI (Listing 
is pleased 
General Me

h e-Voting S

o be made 
attending th
all be able t
ady cast the
tled to cast 

system in c

shareholder
n demat mo

and ends o
mpany, holdi
ut-off date o
hall be disab

g date would

/CIR/P/20
ange Board 
 2015, list
reholders, i
ed that the 
rs is at a ne

s (ESPs) pro
tration on v
hareholders

cess, pursu
o all the d

0 read with
endments o
Obligations
to provide

eeting (AGM
ervices prov

available a
he Meeting, 
to exercise 
eir vote thr
their vote a

case of indiv

s holding sh
ode.  

on July 12, 
ng shares e
of July 06, 
bled by CDS

d not be en

020/242 d
of India (Li

ted entities
n respect o
participatio

egligible leve

oviding e-v
arious ESPs
.  

ant to a p
demat acc

h the 
or re-
s and 
e the 
M) by 
vided 

t the 
who 
their 

rough 
again 

vidual 

hares 

2022 
either 
2022 

SL for 

titled 

dated 
isting 
s are 
of all 
on by 
el.  

voting 
s and 

public 
ount 



 

 15 

37th Annual Report 2021-2022

holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process.  
 
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of 

individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  
 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The URL for users to 
login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select 
New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able 
to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where 
the evoting is in progress as per the information provided 
by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegist
ration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a 
e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page 
or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website. 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for 
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

   
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800 22 55 33 
  

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 
Step 2:  Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares 

in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 
 
(v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders 

other than individual holding in Demat form. 
 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 

and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to 
be used.  

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 
 For Physical shareholders and other than individuall shareholders

holding shares in Demat. 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 
Company/RTA. 
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(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For 
Remote Voting only. 

 
 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves 
in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the 
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) 
for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink 
in case of any wrong mapping. 

 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney 
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded 
in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the 
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not 
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
Process for those Shareholders whose Email/Mobile No. is not registered with the 
Company/Depositories. 

 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., 

Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

 
2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP)  
 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. 
with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while                
e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

 
If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you 
can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 
33 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed 
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A 
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel 
(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at toll 
free no.1800 22 55 33 
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Net Capital Turnover Ratio   
Net Sales/Working Capital 1.12 0.43 160.47

Due to Growth in 
Revenue & Higher 
Efficiency in working 
Capital 

Net Profit Ratio  
Net Profit after Tax/Net Sales 0.10 (0.08) 225.00

Due to Growth in 
Revenue & 
consequential Increase 
in Profits 

Return on Capital Employed  
Earnings Before Interest & 
Tax/Capital Employed 0.03 (0.01) 400.00

Due to Growth in 
Revenue and higher 
efficiency on working 
capital & Consequential 
increase in profits 

Return on Investment 
Income From Investments/ Average 
Investments 0.43 0.53 -19.01 Not Applicable 

There are significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately 
previous financial year) in the key financial ratios on account of recovery from Covid 19 
challenges and business operations resuming normalcy. 
 
Since your Company is a Debt free Company, Interest Coverage Ratio and Debt Equity Ratio 
are not applicable to the Company 

 
2. Dividend 

 
The Board of Directors have recommended a Final Dividend of Rs.2.75/- per equity share 
(27.5% per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs.10/- each) at its Meeting held on May 28, 2022. 
The payment of Final Dividend is subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and would result in a cash outflow of 
approximately Rs. 100.65 Lakhs. 
 

3. Transfer to Reserves 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended transfer of any amount to the 
General Reserve for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

4. Share Capital and Change in Promoter’s holding 
 

During the period under review, there is no change in the Share capital of the Company.  
The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was ₹3,66,00,000 
comprising of 36,60,000 equity shares of ₹10 each. The Company has paid Listing Fees for the 
financial year 2022-23, to the Stock Exchange.  
Mr. Rajesh Agrawal, the promoter of the Company had purchased 23, 650 Equity Shares of the 
Company on March 02, 2022 and Mr. Rakesh Agrawal, the promoter of the Company had 
purchased 5,610 Equity Shares of the Company on March 22, 2022 from the open market 
resulting in increase in promoters holding from 70.91% to 71.71 %.  
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Your Company's income from operations during the year under review was INR 2781.58 Lakhs 
as compared to INR 925.71 Lakhs in the previous year. The total Profit incurred during the 
year under review was Rs. 268.86 Lakhs as against Loss of Rs. 78.60 lakhs during the previous 
year.  
 
During the period under consideration, the revenue from operations was incredible. Despite 
global pandemic troubles, the company operated successfully, with strong online and store 
sales. 
 
Detailed analysis and future outlook of the Company’s business are dealt in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report. 
 

7. Business Overview 
 
The Company continues to maintain its reputation as one of the most reputed manufacturers & 
providers of choicest and exclusive range of Indian & Imported Marbles & Granites. The 
Company is reaping rich dividends on its carefully cultivated long-term relationships with 
several niche clients in India & abroad. The Company has strived to innovate in technology and 
marketing and has evolved accepting the changing customer demands and aspirations. 
 
The Company is constantly improving its efforts on marketing its products through e-
commerce on its website thereby keeping itself abreast with the latest trends in marketing and 
accepting the changing customer demands and aspirations. Online marketing is expected to 
assist the Company to strive in the world of e-commerce keeping watch on customers buying 
habits, expansion of market for niche products, Inventory Management and various other 
benefits thereby targeting the untapped online market in order to enhance the top line and 
revenue by achieving economies of scale. 
 
Aggressive marketing and rational utilization of resources by the Management of the Company 
has been an ongoing process as usual. 
 
The Company has visualized many uncharted territories in terms of creating a better future for 
itself in terms of new products and a wider range of colors and the Company is well positioned 
to capture benefits of the upturn. 
 
Customer Relationships 
 
The Company believes nurturing and maintaining the relationships with existing clients is as 
important as adding new names to its clientele. The Company has been exploring repeated 
orders with its existing clients and continues its efforts to widen its client base both 
geographically and numerically and hopes to further expand it with the introduction of e-
commerce facility on its website in the coming years. 
 
The Company has also gained and maintained reputation for importing and distributing only 
the highest quality material while providing clients with personalized, detailed attention in 
selecting the right material for their projects. 
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The expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the company 
for the financial year 2021-22 in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
13. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 
 

The Company has not given Loans or guarantees pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 to other Body Corporates or persons as indicated in the notes to the financial 
statements. The details of investments are provided in Notes to Financial Statements under 
Note No. 3 

 
14. Particulars of contracts and arrangements with Related Parties 

 
All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company during the financial year 
with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 
During the year, the Company did not enter into any contract/ arrangement/ transaction 
with related parties, which could be considered material in accordance with Regulation 23 of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 
The Company has also disclosed related party transactions on a consolidated basis for the 
half year ended September 30, 2021 to the stock exchange and has also published the 
same on the website of the Company. 

 
The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party 
transactions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website 
www.elegantmarbles.com. The particulars as required under the Act are furnished in 
Annexure B (Form No. AOC-2) to this Report. 

 
15. Auditors and Auditors Report  

 
a. Statutory Auditors 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, M/s. SDBA & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 142004W) 
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, 
to hold office from the conclusion of the 34th Annual General Meeting held on 25th July, 
2019 until the conclusion of 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the 
calendar year 2024, on such remuneration as may be decided by the Audit Committee and 
the Board of Directors. 
 
Pursuant to Section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules prescribed 
there under, the Company has received certificate from the Auditors to the effect, inter-alia, 
confirming that their appointment continues to be within the limits laid down by the Act, is 
as per the term provided under the Act, that they are not disqualified for continuing such 
appointment under the provisions of applicable laws and also that there are no pending 
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disclosures of interests, good governance, leadership skills, operations, business 
development, human resources development, corporate communication etc. The feedback 
received from Directors were then consolidated and placed before the Committee / Board 
for its evaluation. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.  

 
19. Annual Return 

 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 
March 31, 2022 is available on the Company’s website at www.elegantmarbles.com.      

 
20. Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2021-22 

 
During the financial year 2021-22, 5 (five) Board Meetings were held on June 5, 2021; June 
24, 2021; August 12, 2021; October 29, 2021 and February 12, 2022, details of which are 
furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report. 

 
21. Directors Responsibility Statement 

 
In terms of the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, in respect of the year ended March 31, 2022, hereby 
confirm that: 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and 
loss of the Company for that period; 

c)  they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d)  they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
e)  they had laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively; and  
f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and were operating effectively. 
 

22. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies 
 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate company. Hence, 
disclosure of statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of 
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 is not applicable to the 
Company.  

 
23. Depository System 
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The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company, 
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(7) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
27. Internal Financial Control System  

The Company continuously evolves in strengthening its internal control processes and has 
appointed M/s. Deepak Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as the Internal Auditor 
of the Company. The Company has put in place an adequate system of internal control 
commensurate with its size and nature of business. These systems provide a reasonable 
assurance in respect of providing financial and operational information, complying with 
applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company and ensuring compliance with 
corporate policies. 
 
Procedures to ensure conformance with the policies, standards and delegations of authority 
have been put in place covering all activities. Audit Committee periodically reviews the 
performance of Internal Audit System. The Company has a rigorous business planning 
system to set targets and parameters for operations which are reviewed with actual 
performance to ensure timely initiation of corrective action, if required. The Audit 
Committee periodically reviews the Internal Control Systems and Internal Audit Reports. 
Further, the Board annually reviews the effectiveness of the Company's internal control 
system. 
 

28. Corporate Governance 
 

A detailed Report on Corporate Governance, pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 
34(3) of the Listing Regulations, forms an integral part of this Report. A Certificate from the 
Auditors of the Company, M/s SDBA & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming compliance 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Schedule V (E) of the 
Listing Regulations, is annexed to this Report and Mr. Virendra Bhatt (Practicing Company 
Secretary) issued a certificate with regards to Non Dis-Qualification of Directors of the 
Company as per Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, is also annexed to this 
Report.   
The Business Responsibility Reporting, as required by Regulation 34(2) of the Listing 
Regulations, is not applicable to the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2022. 
The Vigil Mechanism of the Company also incorporates a Whistle Blower Policy in terms of 
the Listing Regulations thereby establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and permanent 
employees for reporting genuine concerns, if any. Protected disclosures can be made by a 
whistle blower to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The policy on vigil mechanism and 
whistle blower policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: 
https://www.elegantmarbles.com/policies/. 

29. Disclosure of composition of Audit Committee and providing Vigil Mechanism 
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Annexure A to the Directors’ Report 
 

Statement pursuant to Section 134 (1) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

  
A. Conservation of Energy 

The Company does not belong to the category of power intensive industry and hence 
consumption of power is not significant. However, the management gives due 
importance to conservation of energy wherever feasible, and also reviews from time 
to time, the measures taken / to be taken for reduced and prudent consumption and 
conservation of energy. 
 

B. Technology Absorption, Research & Development 
 

i. Research & Development (R & D) 
The Company undertakes from time to time, studies for process improvement and 
plant design development, to improve quality and performance of its products, to 
substitute imported material and components and to economise the production costs. 
Based on these studies, appropriate actions are taken to achieve these goals. In 
absence of a separate research & development department, it is difficult to quantify 
the amount spent on research & development. 

 
ii. Technology Absorption, Adaption and Innovation 

Efforts are made to absorb the advances in technology with suitable modifications to 
cater to local needs. The Company keeps itself updated with the latest technological 
innovations by way of constant communication, personal discussions etc. 
 

C. Foreign Exchange Used  
Foreign exchange used during the year: Rs. 16.42 Lakhs 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of  
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 
 

Rajesh Agrawal      
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN: 00017931 
Date: 28th May, 2022 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure C 

Form No.: MR-3 
 

Secretarial Audit Report 
 

for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 
	

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.: 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provides me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited’s statutory 
registers, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed with the Registrar of Companies 
(‘the ROC’), soft copy of the various records sent over mail as provided by the Company 
and other relevant records maintained by the Company and also the information provided 
by the Company, its Officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 (“audit period”), prima facie 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder: 
 
I have examined the statutory registers, papers, minutes’ books, forms and returns filed 
with the ROC and other relevant records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of: 
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under; 
 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 
there under; 
 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there 
under; 
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings- Not Applicable during the audit 
period; 
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During the audit period, I am of the opinion that the Company has prima facie complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned 
above. 
 
I further report that:- 
 
1. I have not examined the Financial Statements, Financial books, related financial Acts 

and Related Party Transactions etc., For these matters, I rely on the report of statutory 
auditors for Financial Statement for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the audit period were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 

3. As per the information provided, the Company has prima facie given adequate notice to 
all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

4. I was informed and I observed from the minutes of the Board and Committee Meetings 
that all the decisions at the Meetings were prima facie carried out unanimously. 
 

5. There are prima facie adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 

6. The Management is responsible for compliances of all business laws. This responsibility 
includes maintenance of statutory registers/files required by the concerned authorities 
and internal control of the concerned department. 
 

7. The Company had passed the Special Resolution for the investments pursuant to the 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 up to 200 crores at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company held on 24th September, 2014 however, the resolution does 
not specify the name of the Company and investment to be made. 
 

8. During the audit period, there were no instances of: 
 
i. Public / Rights / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity etc.; 
ii. Issue of equity shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme; 
iii. Redemption / Buy- back of securities; 
iv. Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 which would have major bearing on the Company’s 
affairs; 

v. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc.; 
vi. Foreign Technical Collaborations. 

 
I further report that: 
 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records 
based on my audit. 



38 

 
2. I 

r
r
r
fo

 
3. W

c
 

4. I 
B
 

5. T
R
li

 
6. T

C
c
 

7. I 
C
is

 

Date: 28
Place: M
 

  

 

 

have follow
easonable 
ecords. The
eflected in 
ollowed prov

Where ever 
compliance o

have not 
Books of Acc

The complia
Regulations,
mited to the

The Secretar
Company n
conducted th

have condu
Company du
ssuing this R

8th May, 20
Mumbai 
  
        

wed the au
assurance 
e verificatio
the Secreta
vide a reaso

required, I
of Laws, Rul

verified the
counts of Co

ance of the 
 Standards 
e verificatio

rial Audit re
or the eff
he affairs of 

ucted online
ue to Covid
Report. 

022  
  
  

  

 

udit practice
about the 

on was done
arial record
onable basis

I have obta
les and Reg

e correctne
ompany. 

provisions 
is the respo
n of proced

eport is neit
ficacy or e
f the Compa

e verification
d-19 and su

 

 

 

 

es and proc
correctness

e on test b
ds. I believe
s for my opi

ained the M
ulations and

ss and app

of Corpora
onsibility of 
ures on test

ther an assu
effectiveness
ny. 

n and exam
ubsequent l

 
       
      
 

cesses as w
s of the c
basis to en
e that the 
nion. 

Managemen
d happening

propriatenes

ate and oth
the Manage
t basis. 

urance as t
s with wh

mination of re
lockdown si

            V
     Practic

ACS N
Peer Revi

UDIN: A

were appro
contents of 
sure that c
processes 

t represent
g of events 

ss of financ

her applicab
ement. My e

to the future
ich the M

ecords, as f
ituation for 

Virendra G.
cing Compa
No.: 1157 /
iew Cert. N
A001157D

opriate to o
the Secre

correct facts
and practic

tation abou
etc. 

cial records

ble Laws, R
examination

e viability o
anagement 

facilitated b
the purpos

. Bhatt  
any Secreta
 COP No.: 

No.: 1439/
000421148

obtain 
tarial 
s are 
ces, I 

t the 

s and 

Rules, 
n was 

of the 
has 

y the 
se of 

ary 
124  
2021 
8 



 

 39 

37th Annual Report 2021-2022

Annexure D to Directors’ Report 
Information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 

I. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the Financial Year: 
Name of Directors 
 

Ratio to median 

Shri Rajesh Agrawal – Chairman and Managing Director 14.23 

Shri Rakesh Agrawal – Managing Director 14.23 

Non-Executive Directors received no remuneration, except sitting fees for attending Board / 
Committee meetings. The details of sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors is provided in 
Corporate Governance Report. 

 
II. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 
There was no increment in the remuneration of Director(s), Chief Financial Officer or the Company 
Secretary during the period under review.  

 
III. The median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2021-22: The median 

remuneration of the employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 2,10,800/- In 
computing the median aforesaid, the financial details of employees serving for not less than 12 
months is taken into consideration.    
 

IV. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2022: 59 
employees. 
 

V. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 
The Average percentile increase is approx. 10% and there is no change in Managerial 
Remuneration. 
 

VI. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 
Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per its remuneration policy. 
The particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not 
provided as none of the employees draw salary in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act. 
The Report and the Accounts are being sent to the Members excluding the statement containing 
the names of top ten Employees in terms of Remuneration drawn. In terms of Section 136 of the 
Act, the details of top ten Employees are open for its Inspection at the Registered Office of the 
Company. Any Shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company 
Secretary. 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of  
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 
 
Rajesh Agrawal      
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN: 00017931 
Date: 28th May, 2022 
Place: Mumbai 
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policy package from the baseline, earlier withdrawal of monetary accommodation, and 
continued supply shortages produced a downward 1.2 percentage-points revision for the 
United States. In China, pandemic-induced disruptions related to the zero-tolerance COVID-
19 policy and protracted financial stress among property developers have induced a 0.8 
percentage-point downgrade. Global growth is expected to slow to 3.8 percent in 2023 
 

- Indian Economy and Outlook 
 
India’s economy is poised for a rebound after enduring a second wave of COVID-19 
infections this year that further constrained activity and took a heavy toll on its people. 
India’s broad range of fiscal, monetary and health responses to the crisis supported its 
recovery and, along with economic reforms, are helping to mitigate a longer-lasting adverse 
impact of the crisis. 
 
The overall, sharp rebound and recovery of the economy is reflective of India’s strong 
resilience. India’s economic growth in the current year is estimated to be 9.2 per cent, 
highest among all large economies. 
 

- Government Initiatives 
 
A number of initiatives have been undertaken by the Government of India with the hope of 
incentivizing real estate purchases. The announcements made in the Union Budget 2022-
2023 will help in creating a thriving atmosphere in the real estate sector. The government 
continues to prioritize the affordable housing segment and parallelly looking at ways to 
strengthen the existing financing systems to provide liquidity to stuck real estate projects. 
In the first week of December, the Government of India extended the deadline to provide 
pucca houses to all families in rural India to 2024. The Cabinet decided that the flagship 
rural scheme, Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana-Gramin will be provided INR 2.17 lakh crore in 
additional Central and State funding to achieve its target of building 2.95 crore houses. 
 

B. Industry Structure and Development: 
 
The expansion of the marble business is intimately linked to the country's real estate 
market. During the year under review, India’s real estate sector is witnessing a healthy 
increase in demand in 2022 and this momentum is expected to hold for the rest of the year. 
From commercial spaces to the residential market, the overall market outlook is a bright 
one for the real estate industry. 
 
Despite pandemic exigencies, the sector has continued to show resilience and steady growth 
in 2021. India’s first wave of Covid-19 brought the sector to a relative standstill for a while. 
However, by the last quarter of 2020, the market had begun to pick pace, particularly owing 
to an increase in demand for residential spaces. The second wave of Covid-19 hit the sector 
just as it had begun to revive itself. Unlike the first wave, the ramifications of the second 
wave were not as prolonged or prominent. Vaccination drives and lowered infection rates 
infused optimism in the market. In addition, the festive season fed the sector’s growth. 
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Dimensional Accuracy:  The company ensures that the material is strictly manufactured 
according to dimensions (size and thickness) specified. By using advanced technology, the 
Company ensures tight tolerances  
 
Surface Finish:  The Company has more than eight surface finishing options that can be 
done on marble, ensuring that the surface finish meets the quality requirements of the 
project  
 
The Company has a very high production capacity and excellent distribution network across 
the globe. It is known to process more than 200 colors of a granite alone. The 
manufacturing and quarrying activities are performed by hand picking blocks and processing 
them on gang saws and cutters.  
 
Financial and Operational Performance 
 
The table below gives the Company’s financial performance for FY 2021-22 compared with 
FY 2020-21: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
 Financial  Year 

2021-22
Financial Year  

2020-21
Revenue from Operations  2781.58 925.71
Other Income  200.16 269.39
Total Income  2981.74 1195.10
Profit/ Loss Before Tax 313.26 (78.45)
Less: Current Tax 47.04 -
Deferred Tax 

 

2.42 (0.31)
Excess/(Short) Provision of previous years (5.06) 0.46
Profit/ Loss After Tax 268.86 (78.60)
Other Comprehensive Income  1138.7 2249.66
Total Comprehensive Income For The Year 1407.56 2171.06
 
Key Financial Ratios: 
Particulars 2022-

21 
2021-20 Variance 

(%) 
Reasons for 
Variance (% 

Change more than 
25%) 

Current Ratio: 
Current Assets/Current Liabilities 9.75 10.81 -9.81 Not Applicable 

Return on Equity:  
Profit After Tax/Average Equity 0.73 (0.21) 447.62

Due to Growth in 
Revenues & Profit 

Inventory Ratio:   
Net sales/Average Inventory 1.65 0.58 184.48

Due to Growth in 
Revenue 

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio:  
Total Sales/Average Accounts 
Receivables 9.30 6.60 40.91

Due to Growth in 
Revenue 
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Further, The World is indeed becoming a Global city. Your company believes that niche 
opportunities exist in the Global arena which we are targeting to exploit resulting in positive 
growth. The company has accordingly built a business model tapping these opportunities 
and is also aligning its strategies to utilise opportunities in the domestic market. Your 
company deals in special range of Marble and Granites having exquisite textures, designs 
and colours for which the overseas and domestic markets, both are very demanding. 
Presently, it is one of the few companies which offer all natural stone products under one 
roof to the buyers. The demand for top quality natural stone products is also increasing in 
the domestic market and the company has setup Retail outlets at prime location of the 
country’s financial capital – Mumbai so as to cater to the local demand for quality products. 
However, the number of natural stone exporters from India as well as local dealers dealing 
in imported and other natural stones catering to domestic market are increasing, thus 
reducing the margins and making the business competitive. The availability of manufactured 
stone products as an alternative to natural stones is also likely to affect the performance of 
the company.  
 
The increase in discretionary spending has created a large market and demand for designer 
residences and the growth in construction sector has escalated the demand for marbles and 
granites both in domestic and international markets.  
Your Company suspects all risk associated with pandemic as a threat to the smooth 
functioning of the Company business 
 
Your Company has the necessary expertise and flexibility to quickly adapt to the changing 
market condition and capture the growth in sales leading to growth for the Company.   
 
Threats and Risk Management  
 
Risks are an inherent part of business which cannot be avoided but its robust identification 
and management can overcome its effects. The Company has in place a designated Risk 
Management policy which is designed to overcome adverse Industry fluctuations to 
successfully flourish the business at a reputable pace. The Company provides updates on 
risk management to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company on a 
regular basis.                                                                                                                                      
 
A comprehensive and integrated risk management framework forms the basis of all the de-
risking efforts of the Company. Formal reporting and control mechanisms ensure timely 
information availability and facilitate vigilant and in-time risk management. These 
mechanisms are designed to cascade down to the level of the managers so that risks at the 
transactional level are identified and steps are taken towards mitigation in a decentralised 
fashion. 
 
The Company thereby follows well–established and detailed risk assessment and 
minimisation procedures, which are periodically reviewed by the Board. The Company has 
laid down a well-defined risk management mechanism covering risk mapping, risk exposure 
and risk mitigation process.  
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or materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could influence 
Company's operations include global and domestic financial market conditions affecting the 
interest rates, availability of resources for the financial sector, market for lending, changes 
in regulatory directions issued by the Government, tax laws, economic situation, significant 
changes in political and economic environment in India, applicable statues, litigations, 
labour relations and interest costs and other unforeseen events, if any. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of   
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 
Rajesh Agrawal      
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN: 00017931 
Date: 28th May, 2022 
Place: Mumbai  
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compliance of law. The Code reflects the values of the Company viz. Customer Value, Ownership 
Mind-set, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence. 

A copy of the Code has been put up on the Company's website and can be accessed at 
www.elegantmarbles.com  The Code has been circulated to Directors and Management Personnel, 
and its compliance is affirmed by them annually. 

A declaration signed by the Company's Chairman and Managing Director is published in this 
Report. 
 

b) Composition of Board of Directors 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of eminent professionals and has an optimum 
combination of Executive Directors ("ED"), Non- Executive Directors ("NED") and Independent 
Directors ("ID"), including Women Director, with half of the Board comprising of Non-Executive  
and Independent Directors to maintain the Board's independence, and distinguish its functions of 
Governance and Management.  
 
The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance norms in terms of constitution of 
the Board of Directors. 
 

The strength of the Board is six Directors comprising two Executive including the Chairman of the 
Company and four Non-Executive Directors. Half of the Board of Directors consists of Independent 
Directors on account of Executive Director designated as the Chairman. All Directors possess 
relevant qualifications and experience in general corporate management, finance, banking, 
architecture, designing and other allied fields which enable them to effectively contribute to the 
Company in their capacity as Directors. 

Details of the Board of Directors are given below: 

 
  

Category Name of Director 

Promoter - Chairman and Managing Director Shri Rajesh Agrawal 
Promoter -Managing Director Shri Rakesh Agrawal 

Non - Executive, Independent Director Shri Om Parkash Singal 
Non - Executive, Independent Director Shri Ram Chawla 
Non - Executive, Independent Director Shri Raj Kumar Mittal 
Non - Executive, Woman Director Ms. Yogita Agrawal 



50 

 
  

S
(
S
(

S

(

S
(
S
(
M
(

 

*E
In 
Au
Co

c) Bo

Th
an
urg
res

Du
20
co
Lis
Co
ins
pro
ww
are

Attenda

Name of D

Shri Rajesh A
DIN: 00017

Shri Rakesh 
DIN: 00017

Shri Om Par

DIN:025852

Shri Ramcha
DIN: 00017

Shri Raj Kum
DIN: 00020

Ms. Yogita A
DIN: 06965

Excludes Dire
accordance

udit Committ
ommittees in

oard Meet

e Board/Co
d to ensure
gent busine
solution, in w

uring the fin
21; August
nsecutive B
sting Regula
ompany, its 
sights into is
ovided to 
ww.elegantm
e given belo

ance of Dire

Directors 

Agrawal 
7931) 
Agrawal 

7951) 

kash Singal

264) 

andra Chawl
7992) 
mar Mittal 
0255) 
Agrawal 
5966) 

ectorships i
e with Regu
tees and St
n all public l

ings 

mmittee me
e their mea
ss need, the
which case 

ancial year 
t 12, 2021

Board meetin
ations. The C

manageme
ssues being

the Direc
marbles.com
w: 

ectors 
No. o
Boar

Meetin
attend

during
financ

yea
2021-

5 

5 

 4 

la 5 

5 

5 

n Foreign C
lation 26 of
akeholders' 
imited com

eetings are 
aningful par
e Board's ap
it is ratified

under revie
1; October 
ngs was in 
Company pr
ent, operatio
 faced by th
ctors of t
m. The Deta

of 
rd 
ngs 
ded 
 the 
cial 
r  
-22 

Whet
atten
AGM 

on
Augu
10,20

Y

Y

Y

N

N

Y

ompanies.
f the Listing 
Relationshi

panies (exc

pre-schedu
rticipation i
pproval is ta
 at the subs

ew, five Boa
29, 2021
compliance
roactively k
ons and pro
he industry.
he Compa

ails of Board

 

 

ther 
nded 
held 
n 
ust 
021

      Nu

Dire

Chair
of t
Boa

Y 

Y 

Y 

N 

N 

Y 

Regulation
ip 
luding this C

led to enab
n the meet
aken at a sp
sequent Boa

ard meeting
and Februa
 with the p

keeps its Dir
ovides an o
 The details

any is ava
d Meetings 

umber of   
Other 

ectorships*

man 
he  

ard 

Bo
Mem

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

s, Members

Company) h

le the Direc
tings. Howe
pecially conv
ard meeting

s were held
ary 12, 20
rovisions co
rectors infor
overall indu
s of various
ailable on
held during

          

* 

oard 
mber 

Ch
o

Co

- 

- 

1 

- 

- 

- 

ships/Chairm

have been c

ctors to plan
ever, in cas
vened meeti
g.  

d on June 5,
22. The ga
ontained in 
rmed of the
stry perspe
familiarizat
the Com

 the financi

No. o
Commi
positio
held 
othe

Compa
hairman 
of the 

ommitte
e 

M

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

manships of

considered.

n their sched
e of specia
ng or by cir

, 2021, June
ap between
the Act and

e activities o
ective as we
ion program

mpany's we
ial year 202

of 
ttee 
ons 
in 

er 
nies 

Member 

- 

- 

1 

- 

- 

- 

f only 

dules 
l and 
rcular 

e 24, 
n two 
d the 
of the 
ell as 
mmes 
ebsite 
21-22 



 

 51 

37th Annual Report 2021-2022

 

Date of the Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 
June 5, 2021 6 6 

June 24, 2021 6 6 
August 12, 2021 6 6 
October 29, 2021  6 6 
February 12, 2022 6 5 

 

d) Disclosure of Relationships between Directors Inter-Se 
 

During the year under review, the Board comprised of total six Directors out of which three 
directors were appointed as Independent Directors in accordance with Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

Details in regard of inter-se relationship between Executive and Non- Executive 
Director are given below: 
 
Sr.  
No 

Name of Director Category of Director Nature of Relationship between 
directors Inter-se 

1 Shri Rajesh Agrawal Executive Director Brother of Mr. Rakesh Agrawal 
2 Shri Rakesh Agrawal Executive Director Brother of Mr. Rajesh Agrawal 

Father of Ms. Yogita Agrawal 
3 Ms. Yogita Agrawal Non - Executive Director Daughter of Mr. Rakesh Agrawal 

Non-Executive and Independent Directors do not hold any shares and Convertible 
instruments in the Company 

Familiarisation Programmes for Independent Directors  

The Board members are provided with necessary documents/ brochures, reports and internal 
policies to enable them to familiarise with the Company's procedures and practices. 
Periodic updates on relevant statutory changes, upcoming corporate actions, accounting policies, 
internal control systems and business presentations are circulated to the Directors. The details of 
such familiarisation programme for Independent Directors is put up on the website of the Company 
and can be accessed at https://www.elegantmarbles.com/investors-relations/ . 
 

e) Key Board Qualifications, Expertise and Attributes  
The Board of the Company is highly structured to ensure a high degree of diversity by age, 
education/qualifications, professional background, sector expertise and special skills. The 
following are the skills as identified by the Board. 
 

Core skills/Expertise/Competencies 
identified by the Board of Directors as 

required in the context of its business(es) 
and sector(s) 

Names of Directors who have 
such Skills expertise / 

Competence 
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h) Approve the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, 
experience and background of the candidate. 

i) And matters listed in Part C of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations and in Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met five times on June 5, 2021; June 24, 
2021; August 12, 2021; October 29, 2021 and February 12, 2022 and the gap between two 
consecutive Committee meetings was in compliance with the provisions contained in the Listing 
Regulations. 

Constitution of the Audit Committee and attendance details during the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022 are given below: 
 

Name of the Member Category 

No. of 
Meetings held 
during the 
year 

No. of Meetings 
attended during 
the year 

Shri Om Parkash Singal 
Chairman-Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 5 4 

Shri Ramchandra Chawla 
Member – Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 5 5 

Shri Raj Kumar Mittal 
Member – Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 5 5 

Shri Rajesh Agrawal 
Member – Promoter& 
Managing Director 5 5 

 

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee 
was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 10, 2021. 

 

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in accordance with Regulation 19 of 
the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

A. The terms of reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee include: 

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully; 

b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and 

c) Remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

d) devise a policy on the diversity of Board of Directors; 

e) recommend to the Board the Remuneration Policy for directors, Key Managerial Personnel; 

f) performing such other duties and responsibilities as may be consistent with the provisions of 
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a) Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors 
The Remuneration to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, etc. are governed as 
per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment 
for the time being in force and the approvals obtained from the Members of the Company. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board 
of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / 
Whole-time Directors. 
 

b) Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors: 
The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other 
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of 
sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for 
attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) are 
subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or 
any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be 
such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved 
by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. 

An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible 
to participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company. 

Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which 
are of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the 
purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied: 

• The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 

• In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice 
of that profession. 
 

c)   Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 

The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed 
pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in 
accordance with the Company's Policy. The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance 
between performance of the Company and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as may be considered 
appropriate. 

E. Remuneration of Directors 
 

i. Details of remuneration to Non-Executive Independent Directors during the year 2021-
22 are given below: 
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strategic guidance while maintaining objective judgment. They also oversee corporate 
governance framework of the Company. 

The Company currently has no stock option plan for any of its Directors. During the year under 
review, none of the Directors was paid any performance-linked incentive or commission. 
 

5. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 
 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is primarily responsible to review all matters 
connected with the Company's transfer of securities and redressal of shareholders' / investors' / 
security holders' complaints. 
 

The Committee's composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 the Listing Regulations. 

The terms of reference for the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee include: 

• Review and address the grievance of the shareholders in respect of share transfers, transmission, 
non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of dividend etc., and other related activities 

• Approve issue of duplicate share certificates 

• Review of shares dematerialized 

• Matters relating to transfer of shares to the demat account of the IEPF Authority 

• Perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties 

• Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by 
any statutory notification / amendment or modification as may be applicable. 

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met one time on October 
29, 2021. 

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and attendance details during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022 are given below 

 

Name of the Member Category    No. of 
Meetings 
held 
during 
the year 

No. of 
Meetings 
attended 
during the 
year 

Ms. Yogita Agrawal Chairperson- Non-Executive Director 1 1 

Shri Rajesh Agrawal Member - Managing Director 1 1 
Shri Rakesh Agrawal Member - Managing Director 1 1 

Shri Om Parkash Singal Member- Non Executive Independent 
Director 

1 1 

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. 
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March 31, 2020 September 3, 2020 at 
09:00 a.m. 

E-7/9, RIICO 
Industrial Area, 
Abu Road - 307 
026, Rajasthan 

1. To approve re-appointment 
of Shri Om Parkash Singal as 
the Independent Director of 
the Company. 

2. To re-appoint Shri Rajesh 
Agrawal as the Chairman and 
Managing Director of the 
Company 

March 31, 2019  July 25, 2019 at 09:00 
a.m. 

E-7/9, RIICO 
Industrial Area, 
Abu Road - 307 
026, Rajasthan 

1. To approve re-appointment 
of Shri Ramchandra Chawla 
as the Independent Director 
of the Company. 

2. To approve re-appointment of 
Shri Raj Kumar Mittal as the 
Independent Director of the 
Company 

 

8. Means of Communication 
 
Quarterly results: The Company's quarterly/half yearly are sent to the Stock Exchanges and 
published in 'Free Press Journal', 'Navshakti' and Prabhat Abhinandan/ Jagruk Times, Sirohi'. 
Simultaneously, they are also put up on the Company's website (www.elegantmarbles.com). 

Website: The Company's website (www.elegantmarbles.com) contains a separate dedicated 
section 'Investor Relations' where shareholders' information is available. The Company's Annual 
Report is also available in downloadable form. 

Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Directors' 
Report, Auditors' Report and other important information is circulated to members and others 
entitled thereto. The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of the 
Annual Report. 

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 'Listing Centre'): BSE's Listing Centre is a web-
based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding 
pattern, corporate governance report, statement of investor complaints, among others are also 
filed electronically on the Listing Centre. 

Communication via E-mail: The Company has designated the following email-ids exclusively for 
investor servicing i.e. companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com and info@unisec.in 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a 
centralised web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: 
Centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned 
companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. 
 

9. General Shareholder Information 
The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Rajasthan. The Corporate Identity 
Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 
L14101RJ1984PLC003134. 
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g) Registrar and Transfer Agents 
Universal Capital Securities Private Limited 
C-101, 247 Park, 1st Floor, LBS Road, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli (West),  Mumbai – 400 083  Tel. 
No.: +91 22 2820 7203 Fax No.: +91 22 2820 7207 
Email: info@unisec.in  
Website: www.unisec.in 
 

10. Disclosures 
 

a) There are no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company which 
may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The Company has 
formulated a Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions and the same may be 
accessed at: http://www.elegantmarbles.com/policies/. 

b) All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an 
arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. All Related Party transactions 
were placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Details of Related Party Transactions 
are provided in the Financial Statements of the Company. 

c) During the last 3 years, there were no strictures or penalties imposed on the Company by 
either SEBI or the Stock Exchange or any statutory authority for non-compliance of any 
matter related to the capital markets. 

d) The Company is in full compliance with the mandatory requirements as contained in the 
Listing Regulations. The Company has also adopted certain non-mandatory requirements of 
the Listing Regulations i.e. providing the Chairman of the Company with the resources 
required by him to discharge his responsibilities as Chairman of the Company while in India to 
attend the Company’s Board  Meetings. 

e) The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the 
Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy 
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the 
mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is 
affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee 

f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries. The Company’s policy for determining material 
subsidiaries is put up on the Company’s website and can be accessed at 
http://www.elegantmarbles.com/policies/. 

g) The Financial Statements of the Company are unqualified. 
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CEO and CFO Certification 
The Chairman and Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual 
certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of 
the Listing Regulations.  

The Chairman and Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer also give quarterly 
certification on financial results while placing the Financial results before the Board in terms of 
Regulation 33(2) of the Listing Regulations. The Annual Certificate given by the Chairman and 
Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer is published in this Report. 
 
CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited 

We, the undersigned, in our capacity as the Chairman and Managing Director and the Chief 
Financial Officer of Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited do hereby certify that: 

A. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year 2021-
22 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief report that: 

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of Company’s affair and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the financial year 2021-22 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code 
of conduct. 

C. We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining the internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to the financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and the steps we have taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies.  

D. We have indicated the following to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

1. there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

2. there are no significant changes in the accounting policies during the year that the same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  

3. there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware during the year. 
For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited   For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited             
  
Rajesh Agrawal Hitesh Kothari 
Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer  
Date: 28th May, 2022 Date: 28th May, 2022 
Place: Mumbai          Place: Mumbai 
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To, 
The Members of 
Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited 
Abu Road. 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited having CIN: 
L14101RJ1984PLC003134 and having registered office at E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu 
Road, Rajasthan – 327026 (Hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before me 
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its Officers, I hereby certify 
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the financial 
year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been  debarred or disqualified from being appointed 
or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

Sr.  
No. 

      Name of the Director DIN Date of 
Appointment 

at current 
Designation 

Original Date 
of 

Appointment

1 Rajesh Ramswaroop Agrawal 00017931 01/08/2009 01/08/2009 
2 Rakesh Agrawal 00017951 01/10/2015 05/11/1984 
3 Ramchandra Radhakrishna Chawla 00017992 07/01/1985 07/01/1985 
4 Raj Kumar Mittal 00020255 24/12/2002 24/12/2002 
5 Om Parkash Singal 02585264 15/07/2015 09/05/2015 
6 Yogita Rakesh Agrawal 06965966 24/09/2014 24/09/2014 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is 
the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
Date: 02nd May, 2022                                     Virendra G. Bhatt  
Place: Mumbai                                          Practicing Company Secretary 

      ACS No.: 1157 / COP No.: 124 
                                  Peer Review Cert. No.: 1439/2021 

    UDIN: A001157D000255378 
 

Note: I have partially conducted online verification and examination of records, as 
facilitated by the Company due to prevailing conditions owing to Covid-19 for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate. 
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 managers to the Company available till the finalisation of our audit. On the basis 
of its past experience, the management of the Company is of the opinion that 
generally no material difference in the income, expenditure, gains/losses, 
investment etc. is detected after the audited statements are provided by these 
PMS/fund managers. 

 

  Investment in Debentures 
 b. The Company has invested in debentures of various private/public limited 

companies directly or through various funds managers/PMS and accounts for 
interest accrued and/or received on such investment in debentures from these 
companies/funds from time to time. However, in the case of investment in 
20.50% debentures of Green Farm Tech Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.75,00,000/-, 
20% debentures of Samruddhi Realty Ltd. amounting to Rs.1,00,00,000/-, 18% 
debentures of Fortuna Buildcon (India) Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.49,00,000/-, 
20% debentures of Diyug Construction Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.77,89,858/-, 
17.25% debentures of Kasata Hometech (India) Pvt. Ltd. amounting to 
Rs.87,17,500/-, 15% debentures of Shashwati Realty Pvt. Ltd.  amounting to 
Rs.1,50,00,000/-, 19.532% debentures of Adima Developers Pvt. Ltd. 
amounting to Rs.50,00,000/-(Bal o/s. 42,50,000/-); 17.50% debentures of 
Bhansali Infra Projects Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.1,00,00,000/- (Bal o/s. 
25,50,000/-) and 18% debentures of BCIL Red Earth Developers India Pvt. Ltd. 
amounting to Rs.75,00,000/-, the interest and principal sums, wherever due, 
are not being received on due dates. These companies/funds managers/PMS 
managers have earlier informed the Company about the financial and/or 
liquidity crunch faced by these companies, status of their construction projects, 
the legal cases filed in various forums against these companies with current 
status of these cases and accordingly, advised the company not to account for 
such interest in its books of accounts on accrual basis. Accordingly, the interest 
on such debentures is not being accounted for on accrual basis. Further, having 
regard to the communications received/talks with these companies/fund 
managers/PMS managers and evaluation of the underlying assets made by the 
Board of Directors, in the management's perception, the amounts recoverable 
against these investments including interest thereon are fully secured by the 
underlying security of immoveable properties with their estimated market 
values adequately covering the principal amounts as well as interest accrued & 
already accounted for. In the circumstances, the management has taken a 
conscious decision to not to make a provision for any loss on recoverability of 
these debenture investments & interest already accounted in its books of 
accounts and defer the same till final realisation/decision in various legal 
proceedings initiated by fund managers/PMS managers for these debentures. In 
absence of any working for evaluation of underlying asset being produced 
before us, we are not in a position to comment on it. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  Impact of Covid19 pandemic 
 c. The attention is drawn to Note No. 27.08 to the Notes to accounts which 

specifically discusses the impact of COVID -19 pandemic and its consequent 
economic slowdown on business operation. The company has made its 
assessment on the basis of its internal and external sources and believes that 
the impact of COVID-19 is not material to its financial statements and expects 
to recover the carrying amount of its assets. 

  
  
  
  

 Our procedures included, but were not limited to the following: 
 (i) Non-receipt of audited statement of account in case of investment through 

PMS/Fund Managers  
 (a) Obtained an understanding of management's process of recording of 
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 presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   

 In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 
 
 

 The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.  

6. Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 a. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 
 
 
 

 b. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 
 

 c. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the 
management. 

 

 d. conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 e. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
 

7. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
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 (g)  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 
financial position in its financial statements;    

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.     

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company .  

   

For  SDBA & Co.        
 Chartered Accountants        
 (FRN :142004W)         
 (Sanjeev A. Mehta)       
 Partner       
 M. No.041287       
Mumbai,        
28th May, 2022        
UDIN : 22041287AKKFSA4215       

 
Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
Referred to in paragraph 10  of the Independent Auditors Report of even date to 
the Members of Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Ltd. on the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 
 
(i) (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records of fixed assets showing 

full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets. 

   

  (B) The company does not have any intangible assets. 
 (b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the 

management during the year in accordance with a regular programme for 
verification, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed 
on such physical verification. 

  
  
  

 (c ) The title deeds of the immovable properties disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of company.   

 (d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment 
during the year. 

 (e) Having regard to the representation made by the management, we have to 
state that no proceedings under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder have been initiated 
during the year or are pending against the company as at 31st, March 2022 
for holding any benami property. 

  
  
  

(ii) (a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the 
year on a monthly basis. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is 
reasonable. As explained to us, the internal auditors have also participated in 
the inventory physical verification process and have reported slight variations 
which were insignificant having regard to the size of the company. We have 
relied on the same and in our opinion, the frequency of such verification is 
reasonable. 

  
  
  

  

 (b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits during the 
year from any bank or financials institution. In view of it, the reporting under 
clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable to the Company. 
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(ix) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 

basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company has 
not borrowed funds from any financial institutions, banks or lenders. 
Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

  
  

 (b) Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examinations of the records of the Company, the company 
has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

  
  

 (c ) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under 
this clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

  

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report 
that no funds have been raised during the year by the Company. 
Accordingly, the clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the 
company. 

  
  
  

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report 
that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under 
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable.  

  
  
  
  
 (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures 

performed by us, we report that the company has not raised any loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies, hence the clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company. 

  
  
  

(x) (a)  The company has not raised any funds from initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

  

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) is not applicable. 

  
  
  

(xi) (a)  Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and 
according to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
audit conducted by us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit. 

  
  

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report 
under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been filed by the auditors with the Central Government in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

  
  

 (c)  In accordance with the representation received from the management of 
the Company, the company has not received any complaints from any 
whistle-blower during the year. 

  

(xii) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, 
the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause 3 (xii)(a), (b) & 
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

  

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188  
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(xx) (a)  The provisions of section 135 (5) of the Companies Act,2013 have not been 
applicable to the company since March, 2020. However, on the basis of 
information and explanation available to us, there is no unspent amount 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and hence, reporting under 
clause 3(xx)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

  
  
  

For SDBA & CO. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 (FRN:142004W) 
 (SANJEEV  A. MEHTA) 
                   Partner 

           M. No : 41287 
Mumbai, 
28th May, 2022 
UDIN : 22041287AKKFSA4215 

 
Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditor’s Report  

Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date 
to the Members of Elegant Marbles And Grani Industries Ltd. on the Standalone 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ELEGANT 

MARBLES & GRANI INDUSTRIES LTD. (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

3. Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
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ELEGANT MARBLES & GRANI INDUSTRIES LTD. 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022 

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

       Note  As at  
31.03.2022  

 As at  
31.03.2021 

 Rs.   Rs. 
I. ASSETS 

1. Non-current assets 

a. Property, Plant and Equipment 2 213.74            85.48 
b. Capital Work in Progress -                  -   
c. Investment in Property                  -                  -   
d. Goodwill                 -                  -   
e. Other Intangible assets                  -                  -   
f. Intangible assets under development                  -                  -   
g. Biological assets other than bearer plants                  -                  -   
h. Financial Assets 

i. Investments 3       7,689.76        6,809.07 
ii. Trade Receivable 7          89.51            30.94 
iii. Loans                  -                  -   
iv. Others                  -                  -   

i. Deferred Tax Assets 4           85.80           114.50 
j. Other Non-Current Assets 5           12.66            12.63 

8,091.47        7,052.62 
2. Current assets 

a. Inventories 6 1,628.84        1,670.77 
b. Financial Assets 

i. Investments                  -                  -   
ii. Trade Receivable 7         350.26           127.42 
iii. Cash & Cash Equivalents 8         393.50           233.66 
iv. Bank Balance other than (iii) above 9             2.12              3.06 
v. Loans                  -                  -   
vi. Others 10           67.26           100.01 

c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 11          54.68            25.41 
d. Other Current Assets 12          278.96           194.69 

      2,775.62        2,355.02 
  TOTAL     10,867.09        9,407.64 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
a. Equity Share Capital 13            366.00           366.00 
b. Other equity 14       10,183.76        8,776.19 

     10,549.76        9,142.19 
Liabilities 
1. Non Current Liabilities 

a. Financial Liabilities 
i. Borrowings                    -                 -  
ii. Trade Payables                    -                 -  
iii. Other Financial liabilities                    -                 -  

b. Provisions 15            17.67            32.58 
c. Deferred tax liabilities (Net)                    -                 -  
d. Other non-current liabilities 16              15.00            15.00 
e. Long Term borrowing                    -                 -  

            32.67            47.58 
2. Current Liabilities 

a. Financial Liabilities 
i. Borrowing                    -                 -  
ii. Trade Payables 17 

Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises                    -                  -   
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

            14.87              1.93 

iii. Other Financial liabilities 18             31.94            26.18 
b. Other Current Liabilities 19           192.34           165.29 
c. Provision 20           45.51            24.47 
d. Current tax liabilities (Net)                    -                  -   

         284.66           217.87 
TOTAL     10,867.09        9,407.64 

Significant Accounting Policies 1 
Notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
                    
In terms of our report of even date. For & on behalf of Board of Directors 
For SDBA & CO. 
  Chartered Accountants Rajesh Agrawal 

(FRN : 142004W) Chairman & Managing Director 
       

(SANJEEV  A. MEHTA) Hitesh Kothari Arpita Doshi 
       Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
      M. No : 41287  ACS 45554  
Mumbai Mumbai 
28th May, 2022 28th May, 2022 
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ELEGANT MARBLES & GRANI INDUSTRIES LTD 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

A Equity Share Capital  Amount 

As on 31st March, 2020 
            
366.00  

Changes in Equity Share Capital 
                  
-    

As on 31st March, 2021 
            
366.00  

Changes in Equity Share Capital 
                  
-    

As on 31st March, 2022 
            
366.00  

B Other Equity   

Particulars 
  
  

 Reserves and Surplus   OCI  

Total 
other 
equity 

 General 
Reserve 

 Capital 
Redemption 
Reserve  

 Retained 
earnings  

 Equity 
Instrume
nts 
through 
OCI  

Balance as at March 31, 2020 
 

774.22 
 

84.00    6074.67  
  

(327.74) 
 

6605.15 

Profit for the year             -                    -  
 

(78.60) 
  

-  
 

(78.60) 
Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax             -                    -        660.33  

  
1589.33  

 
2249.66 

 

Balance as at March 
31, 2021   

 
774.22 

 
84.00    6656.40  

  
1261.59  

 
8776.21 

Profit for the year             -                    -        268.86  
  

-  
 

268.86 
Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax             -                    -        842.97  

  
295.72  

 
1,138.69 

 

Balance as at March 
31, 2022   

 
774.22 

 
84.00    7768.23  

  
1557.31  

 
10183.76 

 

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 
2022 

Company overview            

1.0 Elegant Marbles And Grani Industries Limited is a company incorporated in India and is listed 
on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. The company is engaged in manufacture & trading of 
marble, granites & other stones tiles & slabs. The details regarding registered office, corporate 
office & principal place of business is disclosed in the introductory page of this Annual Report.  

NOTE '1' : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES       
  
1.1 Basis of preparation and presentation       

     
(i) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

('Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the 
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Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible 
assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line 
basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable 
intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, 
demand, competition and other economic factors and the level of maintenance expenditures 
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and 
useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.    

1.4 Impairment of Non-financial Assets        

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a 
non-financial asset or a group of non-financial assets are impaired. If any such indications 
exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss which may be caused to the 
company. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or groups of assets is considered as a cash generating unit. If any 
such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash 
generating unit is made.          

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and 
recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance 
account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the 
asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently 
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
through profit or loss.           

1.5 Investment property           

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is 
not used by the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is 
measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and, wherever applicable, borrowing 
costs less depreciation and impairment, if any.  

1.6 Cash & cash equivalents         

Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances and demand 
deposits with banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original maturity is three months or less.  

1.7 Inventory            

Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-trade are stated ‘at the lower of cost or net 
realisable value’. Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress and Goods-in-transit are stated ‘at cost’. 
Cost comprise all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost formulae used are ‘First-in-First-out’. 
Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary.  

Having regard to the nature & value of items of Stores & consumables, the same are treated 
as consumed in the year of their purchase.       
  

1.8 Financial Instruments         
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In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for 
evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through 
profit and loss (FVTPL)          

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal 
to:           

- The 12 month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default 
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date); or 

- Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default 
events over the life of the financial instruments).  

ii. Financial liabilities         
  

 Initial recognition and measurement       
  

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of 
transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss.  

The Company’s financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts and derivative instruments.       

 Subsequent measurement         
  

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured using Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL) are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.          

Loans & Borrowings           

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit & loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.    

 Financial Guarantee Contracts        
   

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a 
payment to be made or to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified 
debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt instrument. 
Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.   

Subsequently the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance 
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less 
cumulative adjustments.          

iii. Derivative financial instruments and Hedge Accounting    
       

The Company can use various derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, 
currency swaps, forwards & options and commodity contracts to mitigate the risk of changes 
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1.9 Leases            

 Company as a Lessee           

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A 
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses 
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset; (ii) the Company has 
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the 
lease; and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.    

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value 
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.   

Lease liability is measured by discounting the lease payments using the interest rate implicit in 
the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease 
payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to 
statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.     

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payment made at or prior to the commencement date of the 
lease plus any initial direct cost less any lease incentives and restoration cost. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impaired losses, if any. ROU 
assets are depreciated on a  assets is in accordance with the Company's accounting policy for 
impairment of tangible and intangible assets.        

 Company as a lessor          
  

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.   

1.10 Fair Value Measurement:         
   
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each 
balance sheet date.           

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:          

 - In the principal market for the asset or liability, or      
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset 

or liability           
 - The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.  
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be required to settle such an obligation.       
    
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in profit or loss as a 
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimate.  

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability 
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.       

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable.       

1.13 Revenue Recognition          
  
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to 
the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably.      

 Sale of goods:            

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of the goods have been transferred to the buyer either at the time of dispatch or delivery or 
when the risk of loss transfers. Export sales are generally recognized based on the shipped on 
board date as per bill of lading, which is when substantial risks and rewards of ownership are 
passed to the customers.          

Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of charges collected from customers 
like transport, packing etc. are not treated as part of sales. Sales returns are recognised when 
appropriate. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and 
is net of price discounts, allowance for volume rebates and similar items.   

Claims/Refunds not ascertainable with reasonable certainty are accounted for on final 
settlement and are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis.   

 Rendering of services:         
  

Revenue from sale of services are recognized when the services are rendered. 
    

 Other Income            

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is 
established.            

Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amounts 
invested and the rate of interest on prudent basis.       
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in 
equity or in other comprehensive income.        

 - Current Tax           
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that 
are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.    

 - Deferred Tax           

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable profit.        

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  

1.17 Government Grants          
  
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attached conditions will be complied with.      

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the statement 
of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they 
are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted in reporting the related expense. When 
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income over the expected useful life of the 
asset.            

In case a non-monetary asset is given free of cost, it is recognised at a fair value. When loans 
or similar assistance are provided by government or related institutions, with an interest rate 
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is recognized as 
government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and measured at fair value 
and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of 
the loan and the proceeds received.        
    

1.18 Earning Per Share          
  
The basic earning per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax available to 
equity share holding for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the current year.         

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of 
potential dilutive equity shares unless impact is anti-dilutive.   
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NOTE '3' : NON -CURRENT INVESTMENTS     (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Name of the Company 
  
  

Face
Value

Paid up
Value

 As  at  31st 
March, 2022  

 As  at  31st 
March, 2021 

          No. 
/ 

Units  

 
Amount  

 No. / 
Units  

 
Amount 

Investment Measured at Amortised Cost  
In Debentures and bonds - Unquoted 
Golden Sparrow Infrastructure Pvt Ltd Ncd 10 10 - - 41,625 4.15

17.25% Kasata Hometech (India) Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 0 87.18 87 87.18

16% Hazel Realty Private Limited Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 0 79.00 10 -

17.50% Bhansali Infra Projects Pvt Ltd Ncd 10,00,00
0

9,80,000 0 23.50 10 98.00

17.75% Advaitha Ventures Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 - - 100 100.00
18% BCIL Red Earth Developers India Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 0 75.07 75 75.07
18% Fortune Buildcon India Pvt Ltd Ncd 100 100 0 49.00 49,000 49.00
10% Adima Developers Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,000 1,000 0 42.50 4,250 50.00
20.50% Green Farm Tech Ncd 10,000 10,000 0 77.25 773 77.25
20% Diyug Construction Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 0 79.57 80 79.57
20% Samrudhi Reality Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 0 100.00 100 100.00
15% Shashwati Realty Pvt Ltd Ncd 10,00,00

0 10,00,000 0 145.50 15 145.50
    758.57 865.72
In Unquoted AIF & Real estate funds       

IDFC Real Estate Yield Fund 100 100 57.25 - 62.39
IIFL Real Estate AIF II  4.5717 4.5717 64.86 - 72.90

 122.11 - 135.29

Investment measured at Fair Value through 
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

Alembic Pharmaceuticals Ltd 2 2 15,000 111.20 -

Aegis Logistics Ltd 1 1  - 942 2.81

Alkem Laboratories Ltd 2 2  - 55 1.52

Apar Industries Ltd 10 10 5,691 36.95 3901 18.54

Atul Auto Ltd 5 5 37,550 60.76 -

Axis Bank Ltd 2 2 4,663 35.49 4457 31.09

Bajaj Finance Ltd 10 10 739 53.65 739 38.06

Bharat Gears Ltd 10 10 48,000 68.98 -

Bayer Cropscience Ltd 10 10  - 34 1.82

Bharat Forge Ltd 2 2  - 385 2.29

Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd 10 10  - 13,000 55.63

Bharti Airtel Ltd 5 5 20,000 151.08 8,000 41.38

Birla Corporation Ltd 10 10  - 164 1.56

Bombay Burman Trading Corp. Ltd 2 2 30,000 258.08 35,760 397.20

Bombay Dyeing MfgcoLtd 1 1 45,000 44.33 45,000 31.57

Bosch Ltd. 10 10  - 21 2.96
Care Ratings Ltd  - 7,000 28.79

Central Depository Services India Ltd          10               10       6,992        103.51  6,992         45.87 

CESC LTD           1                 1     17,340  13.15  1,734 10.29 

Cigniti Technolgoies Ltd          10             10                 -  8,000        25.15 

Colgate-Palmolive (India) Ltd  1                  1                -  177            2.76 

Container Corporation Of India Ltd.           10                10                -  458            2.74 
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Ipca Lab Ltd. 
  

2 
  

2 
   

-   234 
  

4.45 

IRCON International Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
   

-   40,000 
  

35.34 

ISGEC Heavy Engineering Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
  

20,001  
   

102.71  32,001 
  

160.01 

ITC Ltd  
  

1 
  

1 
   

-   31,008 
  

67.75 

Jain Irrigation Systems Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
   

-   35,000 
  

6.46 

Jindal Drilling Industries Ltd 
  

5 
  

5 
  

10,000  
   

23.87  
  

-   

Jindal Saw Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
  

15,808  
   

14.24  15,808 
  

11.72 

Jsl Stainless Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
  

45,247  
   

91.65  45,247 
  

30.59 

Kaveri Seed Company Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
  

4,901  
   

26.81  
  

-   

Kotak Mahindra bank Ltd 
  

5 
  

5 
  

4,524  
   

79.36  3,150 
  

55.22 

KSB Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
  

4,400  
   

57.84  10,000 
  

89.54 

LT Technology Services Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
   

-   243 
  

6.45 

LT Foods Ltd 
  

1 
  

1 
  

90,000  
   

70.29  
  

-   

Larsen and Toubro Ltd  
  

2 
  

2 
   

-   107 
  

1.52 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
   

-   55 
  

2.23 

LIC Housing Finance Ltd  
  

2 
  

2 
   

-   50,000 
  

214.05 

Maharashtra Seamless Ltd 
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5 
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47.78  8,662 
  

23.85 
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17.30 

Man Industries Ltd 
  

5 
  

5 191,050  
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-   

Max Financial Services Ltd 
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6.88 

Mindspace Business Park Reit 
  

-   
  

-   
   

-   23,400 
  

68.96 

Motilal Oswal Financial Service Ltd 
  

1 
  

1 
  

12,054  
   

104.82  17,054 
  

106.77 

Meghmani Organics Ltd 
  

1 
  

1 
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31.38  
  

-   

National Aluminium Co. Ltd 
  

5 
  

5 
   

-   1,00,000 
  

54.00 

Ndr Auto Components Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
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3.93  1,000 
  

1.90 

Oriental Carbon and Chemicals Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
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64.13  
  

-   
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10 
  

10 
  

2,000  
   

6.30  
  

-   
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10 
  

10 
   

-   18 
  

5.46 

Petronet LNG Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
   

-   20,000 
  

44.98 

Piramal Enterprises Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
  

2,475  
   

54.13  600 
  

10.51 

Polyplex Corporation Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
  

3,370  
   

81.72  3,370 
  

29.08 

Power Mech Projects Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
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14.71  1,760 
  

10.28 

Privi Speciality Chemicals Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
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42.40 

Pitti Lamination Ltd 
  

5 
  

5 
  

5,000  
   

16.14  
  

-   

Procter & Gamble Health Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
  

687  
   

27.50  687 
  

42.61 

PSP Projects Ltd 
  

10 
  

10 
  

27,000  
   

145.76  
  

-   

Rain Industries Ltd 
  

2 
  

2 
  

37,489  
   

72.71  24,989 
  

35.70 

Redigton India Ltd 
  

24,000  
   

34.79  
  

-   
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Motilal Oswal Nifty Smallcap 250 Index 
F. Direct Growth                 10 

 
10 

  
4,33,855            95.26  

 
4,33,855 

 
67.11 

 624.79  553.73  

Investment measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) 
In Debentures and bonds - Quoted 
8% Britannia Inds Ltd NCD (Bonus) 30                 -  9,450              2.98  9,450  -  
In Mutual Fund -Quoted             2.98                 -  
ICICI Prudential Banking & PSU Debt Fund 
Direct Growth                 10 

 
10 

  
-                 -  

 
2,16,949 

 
746.87 

Edelweiss Greater China Equity 1,000 1,000 2,060 0.90 -

Nippon India Liquid Bees 3              0.03                 -  
   0.93  746.87 

Total Non Current Investment    44,059   7,689.76  
 

43,25,994 
 

6,809.07 

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments       5,254.75  
 

4,537.05 

Market Value of Quoted Investments       6,809.09  
 

5,808.06 

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 880.67  
 

1,001.01 
Category-wise Non current Investment 

Financial Assets measured at cost               -  880.68                 -  1,001.01 
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value 
through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVTOCI) 04,999    6,805.17  09,045 

 
5,061.19 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value 
through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

  
2,060              3.91  

 
2,16,949 

 
746.87 

Total Non Current Investment 9  7,689.76  3,4 6,809.07 

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 
 As at  

31.03.2022 
 As at  

31.03.2021 

 Rs.  Rs. 

NOTE '4' : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 
At the start of the year 114.50 136.83 
Deferred tax for current year   (28.70) (22.33) 

At the end of the year     85.80 114.50 

Components of Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets : 
Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets in relation to: 
Property, Plant & Equipment     (3.38) (0.69) 
Carried Forward Loss 89.18 115.19 

 85.80 114.50 

NOTE '5' : OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 
Deposits 12.66 12.63 

     12.66 12.63 

NOTE '6' : INVENTORIES 
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)   

(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) 
Raw Material   -                  0.34  
Finished Goods         1,628.84 1,670.43 

1,628.84 1,670.77 

NOTE '7' : TRADE RECEIVABLES 
Trade receivables 439.77 158.37 

439.77 158.37 

Current portion      350.26 127.42 
Non-current portion 89.51 30.94 
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-  
 

-  
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-           -  

-           -  

-              -  
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 As at  
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 Rs. 

       -  
 

158.37 

                 -  
 158.37 

 
 

 
226.66 

                 -  
 

7.00 

       233.66 
 

3.06 

    3.06 
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    0.59 

  100.01 
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NOTE '11' : CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)  
Income tax (net of provisions)    54.68 25.41 

54.68 25.41 

NOTE '12' : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
(Unsecured & considered good) 
Advance to suppliers 26.83 31.29 

Prepaid Expenses 23.19 20.66 

Advance to Employees 0.65 1.78 

Other Recoverable 228.29 104.36 
Balance with revenue authorities -  36.60 

278.96 194.69 

(Rs. in Lakhs)

      
As at  

31.03.2022
As at  

31.03.2021
 Rs.  Rs. 

NOTE '13' : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised 

50,00,000 (Previous Year : 50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.              500.00          500.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up 

36,60,000 (Previous year : 36,60,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each  
366.00 

 
366.00 

     TOTAL   
366.00 

 
366.00 

(a)  Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end 
of the year :  
Particulars     31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

No.of  Amount No.of   Amount  

      Shares  Rs. Shares   Rs.  

 At the beginning of the period  
36,60,000 

 
366.00 

 
36,60,000 

 
366.00 

 Issue during the year                      -   
-                       -   

-  

 
Outstanding at the end of the 
year 

 
36,60,000 

 
366.00 

 
36,60,000 

 
366.00 

 
The Company bought back 840000 equity shares of Rs.10 each for an aggregate value of Rs.16.38 crores being 
17.22% of the total paid up equity share capital at Rs.205 per equity share during the year ended 31st March, 
2018. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on 30.03.2018.  

(b)  Equity Shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares along with number of equity 
shares is given below : 

 

Name of the 
Shareholder 
  

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

No.of  %  No. of  %  

     Shares   Shares   

 Shri Rajesh Agrawal  
8,43,697 23.05% 

  
8,20,047  22.41% 

 Shri Rakesh Agrawal  
7,18,202 19.62% 

  
7,12,592  19.47% 

Smt. Alka Agrawal        4,21,745 11.52%        4,21,745  11.52% 
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NOTE '14' : OTHER EQUITY  (Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars 
  

 Reserves and Surplus   OCI    

 General 
Reserve 

Capital 
Redemption 
Reserve  

 Retained 
earnings  

 Equity 
Instruments 
through OCI  

 Total 
other 
equity  

Balance as at March 31, 2020   774.22    84.00   6074.67       (327.74)
 

6605.15 

Profit for the year          -          -  
 

(78.60)               -  
 

(78.60)
Other comprehensive income for the 
year, net of tax          -          -       660.33      1589.33 

 
2249.66 

Balance as at March 31, 2021   774.22    84.00   6656.40      1261.59 
 

8776.21 

Profit for the year          -          -       268.86               -  
 

268.86 
Other comprehensive income for the 
year, net of tax          -          -       842.97        295.72 

 
1138.69 

Balance as at March 31, 2022   774.22    84.00   7768.23      1557.31 10183.76 

Capital Redemption Reserve    
Represent Reserve created during buy back of Equity Shares and it is a non-distributable reserve. 

 
As at  31.03.2022 

As at  
31.03.2021 

  Rs.   Rs. 
NOTE '15' : PROVISIONS - NON-CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

 

Provision for employee benefits  

Gratuity           17.67           32.58 
          17.67           32.58 

NOTE '16' : OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Amount payable against office premises           15.00           15.00 
          15.00           15.00 

NOTE '17' : TRADE PAYABLES 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises               -                -  
Others          14.87             1.93 
          14.87             1.93 
 Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at 31st March 2022  
 

 Particulars  

 Less 
than 1 
Year  

 1 to 2 
Years  

 2 to 3 
Years  

 More 
than 3 
Years   Total  

 
 MSME           -           -                -   

              
-                  -    

 
 Others      14.87         -                -   

              
-             14.87  

 
 
 

  
Disputed Dues - MSME  

      
    -    

        
 -                -   

              
-    

      
         -    

 
 Disputed Dues - Others           -           -                -   

              
-                  -    

 
 Total      14.87         -               -    

              
-             14.87  
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NOTE '23' : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 
Opening stock 
Finished Goods           1,670.43           1,426.84 
Closing stock 
Finished Goods           1,628.84           1,670.43 

                41.59             (243.59)

NOTE '24' : EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages & Bonus              290.98              237.97 
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Fund                  4.92                  4.38 
Gratuity                  7.96                  6.88 

             303.86              249.23 

NOTE '25' : OTHER EXPENSES 
Consumables & Stores                13.61                  7.00 
Power & Fuel                51.36                45.66 
Rent, Rates & Taxes (excluding taxes on income)              137.88                99.85 
Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery                  2.30                  0.77 
Repairs & Maintenance - Other                11.45                  4.23 
Auditors' Remuneration                  2.00                  2.00 
Insurance                21.28                23.20 
Commission                 20.89                     -  
Loss on Derivatives on Futures & Options                  3.55                21.69 
Motor Car Expenses                  2.97                  1.23 
Donation                  0.26                  1.24 
Telephone & Internet Expenses                  4.69                  4.55 
Bad Debts                     -                 51.38 
Legal & Professional Fees                23.68                  6.99 
Travelling Expenses                  4.01                  0.18 
Sales Promotion Expenses                27.97                15.03 
Miscellaneous Expenses                56.29                33.18 

              384.19              318.18 
25.1 : AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 

Audit Fee                  1.80                  1.80 
Tax Audit Fee                  0.20                  0.20 
                  2.00                  2.00 

NOTE '26' NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 
NOTE 26 ANALYTICAL RATIOS 
SR. 
No  

PARTICULARS 
  2021-22 2020-21 

Variance 
(%) 

Reasons for Variance (% 
Change more than 25%) 

1. 
Current Ratio = 
Current Assets/Current Liabilities 

     9.75    10.81 -9.81% Not Applicable 

2. 
Return on Equity =  
Profit After Tax/ Average Equity 

     0.73    (0.21) 447.62% Due to Growth in Revenues 
& Profit 

3. 
Inventory Ratio =  
Net sales/Average Inventory 

     1.65      0.58 184.48% Due to Growth in Revenue 

 4. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio = 
Total Sales/Average Accounts 
Receivables 

     9.30 
 

  

     6.60 40.91% Due to Growth in Revenue 

5. 

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio =  
Net Credit Purchases/ Average Trade 
Payables 

  228.39  105.57 116.34% Due to Growth in Revenue & 
consequential Increase in 
Purchases 
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27.4 CONTINGENT LIABILITY        

(i) The company has preferred appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), 
Mumbai against the orders passed by Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax for the assessment 
years 2013-14, 2014-15 & 2017-18 raising a demand of Rs.33,37,670/-, Rs.6,78,670/- and 
Rs. 5,15,403/-   respectively.  

(ii) The Company has executed Letter of Undertaking indemnifying the President of India against 
any liability that may arise on account of Goods & Service Tax provisions on goods exported 
by it. 

(iii) The company is paying lease rent for its properties situated at Raghuvanshi Mills Ltd., 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai alongwith other tenants in the property to the 
Court as per its order. Upon receipt of final order, exact liability of each members shall be 
notified and any excess/shortfall as applicable shall be payable/refundable to the respective 
tenants.       

27.5 POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS        

 Defined  Benefits Plan        

(i) Gratuity       

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity 
Act, 1972. The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five 
years of service with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity 
is paid @ 15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972.  

(ii) Employee benefit schemes recognised in the financial statements as per actuarial 
valuation as on 31st March, 2022 are as follows :  

A. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation 
As at 

31.03.2022 
As at 

31.03.2021
Rs. Rs.

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of 
the year           57.06              53.59 
Current service cost             4.20                3.31 
Interest Expenses             3.76                3.57 
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss            (1.84)             (3.40)
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year           63.18              57.07 

B. Expenses recognised during the year 
Income Statement 
Current service cost             4.20                3.31 
Interest Expenses             3.76                3.57 
Net Cost             7.96                6.88 
In Other Comprehensive Income 
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss            (1.84)             (3.40)

          (1.84)             (3.40)
C. Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 6.59% 6.59%
      Salary Escalation 4.00% 4.00%
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Rajesh Agrawal 295.00                -  
Rakesh Agrawal 100.00  -  

iv. Director Sitting fees -          -  
Yogita Agrawal 0.25    -  
Shri Raj Kumar Mittal 0.55  0.50 
Shri Ram Chawla 0.55  0.50 
Shri OM Prakash Singal 0.50  0.50 

27.8 The company has assessed the impact of the COVID-19 and consequent economic slowdown 
on business operations, revenues, cash flows and its ability to repay its liabilities and is 
confident that the company has adequate stocks of raw material, stores and finished goods to 
sustain any disruption in supply chain and revenue streams & liquidity to repay its liabilities.  

The Company has made this assessment based on available internal and external sources of 
information upto the date of approval of its financial statements and believes that the impact 
of COVID-19 is not material to its financial statements and expects to recover the carrying 
amount of its assets.   

27.9  FAIR VALUATION MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2022   As at 31st March, 2021 

Carrying Level of Input used in Carrying Level of Input used in
amount      amount      

      Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Level 1 Level 2Level 3
Financial Assets 
At Amortised cost 
Investments 880.66 - - - 1,001.01 - - - 
Trade Receivable 350.26 - - - 127.42 - - - 
Cash & Bank Balance 395.62 - - - 236.72 - - - 
Other Financial Assets 67.26 - - - 100.00 - - - 
At FVTPL 
Investments 3.91 3.91 - - 746.87 746.87 - - 
AT FVTOCI 
Investments 6,805.17 6,805.17 - - 5,061.195,061.19

Financial Liabilities 
At Amortised cost 
Trade Payable 14.87 - - - 1.93 - - - 
Other Financial Liabilities 31.93 - - - 26.18 - - - 
 
The financial instruments are categorized into two levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair 
value measurements as described below:        

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; and   

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets 
or liability, either directly or indirectly.          

Liquidity Risk          
Liquidity risk is the risk that suitable sources of funding for the company’s business activities may not 
be available. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable 
securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to 
meet obligations when due, so that the company is not forced to obtain funds at higher rates. The 
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ELEGANT MARBLES & GRANI INDUSTRIES LTD. 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 As at  
31.03.2022 

 As at  
31.03.2021 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES : 
Net profit before tax and extra-
ordinary items 313.27 (78.45)
Adjustments for : 
Depreciation 19.88 13.42
Gratuity  7.96 6.88
Profit on sale of Fixed asset - -
Gain on financial assets (14.02) (71.23)
Interest / Dividend Income (185.80) (198.16)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL 
CHANGES : 141.29 (327.54)
Adjustments for : 
Trade receivables (281.39) (38.78)
Other receivables (51.55) (134.59)
Inventories 41.93 (243.92)
Trade and other payables 46.68 51.16
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (103.04) (693.67)
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (172.28) (15.19)
Net cash from operating activities  (A) (275.32) (708.86)
B.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES : 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (149.10) (6.75)
Purchase of non current investment (9,887.92) (6,516.64)
Sale of non current investments 10,285.42 7,109.87
Sales of property, plant and equipment 0.96 -
Interest received 84.70 48.14
Dividend received 101.10 150.02
Net cash used in investment activities  (B) 435.16 784.64
C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES :  (C) - -
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 

 
(A+B+C) 159.84 75.78

Opening balance of Cash & cash equivalents 233.66 157.88
Closing balance of Cash & cash equivalents 393.50 233.66
(Ref. Note No.8) 

 

 
  

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred 
to in our report of even date. 

For & on behalf of Board of Directors 

For SDBA & CO.        
Chartered Accountants Rajesh Agrawal  
(FRN : 142004W) Chairman & Managing Director 
       
(SANJEEV  A. MEHTA) Hitesh Kothari      Arpita Doshi 
 Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
M. No : 41287    
Mumbai     Mumbai 
28th May, 2022 28th May, 2022   
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37th Annual Report 2021-2022

Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited 
CIN: L14101RJ1984PLC003134 

Regd. Office: E 7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road 307 026, Rajasthan. 
37th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON Wednesday, July 13, 2022 

PROXY FORM 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
Name of the Member (s):  

Registered Address :  

Email Id :  
Folio No./Client ID :  
DP ID :  
 
I/We, being a member (s) of ___________________________ shares of the above named Company, hereby 
appoint: 

1. Name:________________________Address:_______________________________________ 

E-mail Id: ____________________________________________Signature or failing him/her, 

2. Name:________________________Address:_______________________________________ 

E-mail Id: ____________________________________________Signature or failing him/her, 

3. Name:________________________Address:_______________________________________ 

E-mail Id: ____________________________________________Signature or failing him/her, 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 37th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, July 13, 2022 at 09.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company 
situated at E-7/9, RICCO Industrial Area, Abu Road – 307 026, Rajasthan and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Resolutions Original 
For Against 

1 Consider and adopt: 
Audited Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2022 and the 
Balance Sheet as on that date together with the Reports of the Directors and 
the Auditors thereon     

2 To declare a final dividend on Equity Share for the financial year ended     
March 31, 2022.      

3 Re-appointment of Ms. Yogita Agrawal, a Director retiring by rotation   
 
 
Signed this ____________________ day of ______________ 2022 
 
 
 
 
____________________________     _____________________ 
 Signature of Shareholder           Signature of Proxy 
 
NOTES:  
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly filled and deposited at the Registered Office of the 

Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.  
2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting. 
3. In the case of jointholders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the jointholders should be stated. 
4. This form of proxy will be valid only if it is duly complete in all respects, properly stamped and submitted as per the applicable 

law. Incomplete form or form which remains unstamped or inadequately stamped or form upon which the stamps have not 
been cancelled will be treated as invalid.  

5. Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.  
6. If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last will be considered valid; 

if they are not dated or bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple proxies will be treated as invalid.  

AFFIX 
REVENUE 
STAMP 
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Form No. SH-14 

Cancellation or Variation of Nomination 
[Pursuant to sub-section (3) of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(9) of the 

Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014] 
 

Name of the Company:   Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited 
Registered Address of the Company:  E 7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road – 307 026, 

Rajasthan Telefax: 02224939676  
Website: www.elegantmarbles.com 
email:elegantmarbles@gmail.com 

 
I/We hereby cancel the nomination(s) made by me/us in favour of _________________(name(s) and 
address of the nominee) in respect of the below mentioned securities. 

Or 
I/We hereby nominate the following person in place of __________________________as nominee in 
respect of the below mentioned securities in whom shall vest all rights in respect of such securities in 
the event of my / our death. 
 

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being cancelled / 
varied) 

 
Nature of securities Folio 

No. 
No. of 
securities 
 

Certificate No. Distinctive 
No. 
 

     
(2) (a) PARTICULARS OF THE NEW NOMINEE/S – 
i. Name : 
ii. Date of Birth: 
iii. Father’s / Mother’s / Spouse’s name: 
iv. Occupation: 
v. Nationality: 
vi. Address: 
vii. E-mail Id. & Telephone No. : 
viii. Relationship with the security holder: 

 
(b) IN CASE NEW NOMINEE IS A MINOR – 
i. Date of birth: 
ii. Date of attaining majority : 
iii. Name of guardian: 
iv. Address of guardian : 

 
(3) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF 

MAJORITY -- 
(a) Name : 
(b) Date of Birth : 
(c) Father’s / Mother’s / Spouse’s name: 
(d) Occupation : 
(e) Nationality : 
(f) Address : 
(g) E-mail id. & Telephone No. : 
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s) : 
(i) Relationship with the minor nominee : 

 
Name(s) and Address of Security holder(s)       
 Signature(s) 
Name and Address of Witness         Signature 
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